
 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

COMMISSION MEETING 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

Thursday, July 14, 2016, 1:30 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

 

1:30 p.m. 1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

1:31 p.m. 2. Welcome and Introductions – Matt Greeson (City of Worthington), 

MORPC Chair 

 

 Special Guests and Presentations 

 

1:35 p.m. 3. Continuation of Columbia Gas of Ohio's Energy Efficiency Programs 

– Jack Laverty, Demand Side Management Manager & Melissa 

Thompson, Regulatory Affairs Director 

 

1:40 p.m. 4. City Managers and Mayors Group – Ben Kessler, City of Bexley 

Mayor 

 

1:45 p.m. 5. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of June 9, 2016 Commission Meeting Minutes 

 

1:46 p.m. 6. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive 

Director 

 Quarterly Membership Report – Eileen Leuby, MORPC 

Membership Services Coordinator 

 

1:55 p.m. 7. Reserve & Investment Advisory Committee – Joe Stefanov (City of 

New Albany), Reserve & Investment Advisory Committee Chair 

 Proposed Resolution 10-16: “ESTABLISHING AN AGENCY 

OPERATING RESERVE POLICY” – Shawn Hufstedler, MORPC 

Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

 

2:00 p.m. 8. Proposed Resolution 08-16: “ESTABLISHING MAXIMUM PER-CAPITA 

MEMBERSHIP FEES FOR 2017 TO 2021” – Shawn Hufstedler, 

MORPC Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

 

2:05 p.m. 9. Proposed Resolution 09-16: "ADOPTING A FEE SCHEDULE FOR USE 

IN ASSESSING MEMBERS IN 2017" – Shawn Hufstedler, MORPC 

Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 



Commission Meeting Agenda 

July 14, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 Committees 

 

 10. Transportation Policy Committee (MPO) – Matt Greeson (City of 

Worthington), MORPC Chair  

 

2:10 p.m. a. Call to Order – Matt Greeson (City of Worthington), MORPC Chair 

 

2:11 p.m. b. Metropolitan Planning Organization Report  

 Transportation Systems & Funding – Thea Walsh, Director 

 Energy & Air Quality – Christina O’Keeffe, Director 

 Commuter Challenge – Christina O’Keeffe 

 

2:19 p.m. c. Consent Agenda 

 Approval of June 9, 2016 Transportation Policy Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

2:20 p.m. d. Clean Fuels Ohio – Sam Spofforth, Clean Fuels Ohio Executive 

Director 

 

2:25 p.m. e. ODOT District 6 Update – Thom Slack, ODOT District 6 Planning & 

Engineering Administrator 

 

2:30 p.m. f. DATABus Draft Transit Development Plan (TDP)/Funding Study – 

Denny Schooley, DATABus Executive Director 

 

2:35 p.m. g. Adjourn Transportation Policy Committee (MPO) – Matt Greeson 

(City of Worthington), MORPC Chair 

 

2:36 p.m. 11. Motion to Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

 

2:37 p.m. 12. Bylaws Committee – Rory McGuiness (City of Columbus), Bylaws 

Committee Chair 

 

2:40 p.m. 13. Regional Data Advisory Committee – Victor Paini (Madison 

Township) & Jung Kim (Columbus 2020), Data Site Task Force Co-

Chairs 

 

2:45 p.m. 14. Regional Policy Roundtable – Steve Campbell (City of Columbus), 

Regional Policy Roundtable Chair 

 

2:50 p.m. 15. Sustainability Advisory Committee – Steve Stolte (Union County), 

Sustainability Advisory Committee Chair 

 

2:55 p.m. 16. Other Business 

 

3:00 p.m. 17. Adjourn – Matt Greeson (City of Worthington), MORPC Chair 

 



Commission Meeting Agenda 

July 14, 2016 

Page 3 

 

 
PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org  

IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 
 

 
The next Commission Meeting is 

Thursday, September 8, 2016 at 1:30 p.m. 
111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 

Columbus, Ohio 43215 
 

 
Note: Short Street is closed April 25 through November 2016. MORPC's parking lot is 
accessible via Front Street or Liberty Street. 
 
When you arrive in MORPC’s lobby, a video screen will display the day’s meetings. 
Each meeting will list a phone extension. Use the phone in the lobby to call the 
extension and someone will come escort you to the meeting.   
 
When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a MORPC visitor 
space or in a space marked with an “M”. Handicapped parking is available at the 
side of MORPC’s building. MORPC is accessible by CBUS. 

 

 

 

mailto:ssaunders@morpc.org


Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Commission  

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, June 9, 2016 

1:30 p.m. 

 

Commission Members 

Karen Angelou 

Stacey Boumis 

Susan Brobst 

Ron Bullard 

Greg Butcher 

Franklin Christman 

Ben Collins 

Mike Compton 

Karl Craven 

Michael Ebert 

Terry Emery 

Matt Greeson 

Marian Harris 

Tracy Hatmaker 

Dan Havener 

Pam Hykes O’Grady 

Jenna Jackson 

Erik Janas 

Larry Jenkins 

Anthony Jones 

Steve Kennedy 

Benjamin King 

Bill LaFayette 

Laura Lanese 

Tim Lecklider 

Kim Maggard 

Glenn Marzluf 

Dana McDaniel 

Erin Miller 

Ellen Moss Williams 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

Eric Phillips 

Rob Platte 

Hannah Reed 

Bryan Rhoads 

Elissa Schneider 

Ashley Senn 

Ike Stage 

Ted Staton 

Joe Stefanov 

Steve Stolte 

Christie Ward

 

Associate Members 

Nikki Scarpitti 

 

Policy Committee Members 

Mike Maleski 

David Paul 

Thom Slack 

Curtis Stitt 

Carrie Woody

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Mark Crosten 

Mary Ann Frantz 

Joe Garrity 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Eileen Leuby 

William Murdock 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Bevan Schneck 

Thea Walsh 

 

Guests 

Harrison Allen, Summer Intern (Marble Cliff) 

Col. Mark Auer, 121st Air Refueling Wing 

Mary Cusick, TourismOhio 

Sarah Davis, Summer Intern (Grandview Heights) 

Vishwa Jena, Summer Intern (Violet Township) 

David Kilroy, Summer Intern (Perry County) 

Emily Long, Summer Intern (MORPC) 

Jack Marchbanks, ODOT District 6 

Mike Schadek, City of Columbus 

Brianna Shepherd, Summer Intern (Somerset) 

Tablet Tesfaye, Summer Intern (MORPC) 

Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 

Mary Turner, Summer Intern (Worthington) 

Todd Walker, TourismOhio 

 

 

Chair Matt Greeson called the Commission Meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. followed by the pledge of allegiance.   

Chair Greeson welcomed and recognized participants in the Summer Intern Program: Sarah Davis, Vishwa 

Jena, David Kilroy, Emily Long, Brianna Shepherd, Tablet Tesfaye, and Mary Turner.  Chair Greeson 



Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 9, 2016 

Page 2 

 
congratulated Delaware County Engineer Chris Bauserman on being named the 2015 Urban County Engineer 

of the Year by the National Association of County Engineers. 

 

Consent Agenda 

Joe Stefanov made a motion to approve the consent agenda, second by Mike Compton; motion passed.   

 

TourismOhio – Mary Cusick, TourismOhio Director 

Mary Cusick presented Tourism Ohio’s Ohio Brand Strategy. Their goal is to make Ohio a destination of choice 

through aggressively promoting tourism. Through interviewing travelers, they have discovered that it is not just 

what you do, but how it makes you feel, which is reflected in their new branding strategy and ad campaign. 

 

Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 

William Murdock announced that Mayor Ginther’s presentation for the Smart City grant application was 

scheduled for 3:20 p.m. in Washington, DC and invited members to stay and watch it via live stream.   

 

Sonja Simpson is the new Deputy Director for ODOT District 5. Thom Slack introduced new ODOT District 6 

Deputy Director Jack Marchbanks. Both Ms. Simpson and Mr. Marchbanks are MORPC Alumni. 

 

A MORPC Summer Event Guide listing the MORPC 2016 summer forums and events was provided to 

attendees. 

 

Yaromir Steiner presented information on insight2050 at the Franklin County Retail Summit on June 8. Phase 

3 of insight2050 includes the creation of a Technical Assistance Program that allows communities to request 

funding for consultant services related to planning and community development.  

 

MORPC has been designated a Silver Level Bicycle Friendly Business by the League of American Bicyclists. 

 

Copies of the latest Columbus Metro Bike Map were distributed. More copies are available. The map is also 

available online. 

 

This year’s Riverfest is in conjunction with the Columbus Arts Festival. Free canoeing and kayaking is available 

June 11, 12-4 p.m. at Battelle Park. Riverfest is a way to celebrate our waterways and educate about water 

quality. 

 

Each year membership dues or fee schedule is adopted in July. The proposed 5-year plan was reviewed by the 

Executive Committee and the Officers. Shawn Hufstedler gave a presentation on 2017-2021 Dues Planning.  

 

Per MORPC’s governance requirements, every 5 years MORPC needs to establish a 5 year maximum 

dues schedule. As a result of the 2014 Bylaws change, this maximum dues schedule is ahead of the 

timetable in order to transition to the new norm. A non-binding five year estimate of fees is also being 

presented for consideration and comment. The estimates are based on 2016 population; the 2017 

projections will be available in the Fall. Resolutions will be presented next month for the annual fees 

and five year maximum dues schedule.  

 

Historically, MORPC does not charge the maximum rate. Note that all members pay the RPC-Only and 

Building dues. The MPO dues are paid only by entities within the MPO area. 

 

Building dues were dropped from 7 cents per capita to 3.5 cents per capita when the old building was 

sold in 2007. The expectation was that the proceeds from the building sale would be able to produce 

interest sufficient to cover the difference. 2008 did not turn out as predicted. As a result, overhead 

has been required to bear additional burden for building costs, resulting in less funds available for 

direct programs. Additionally, lease costs are on the rise and additional funding is needed to pay for 

building costs. A Reserve and Investment Committee was established to help determine how to build 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/06092016OhioBrandStrategy.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/transportation/bicycle-pedestrian/columbus-metro-bike-map/index
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/06092016DuesDiscussion.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/2017-2021MemberDuesEstimate.pdf


Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 9, 2016 

Page 3 

 
an adequate reserve for the agency. The Reserve Committee recommends broadening the definition 

of the building dues to allow for more flexibility to include reserve funding. Depending on overhead 

funding needs and availability, the building/reserve dues could be used for building costs or for 

reserve purposes.  

 

The proposed schedule allows flexibility to increase dues more than planned if there are new costs or 

initiatives desired to be funded by the Commission, but provides an anticipated inflationary increase 

each year to maintain current level of service and plan for new building needs.  

 

Rickenbacker Air National Guard Base – Col. Mark D. Auer, 121st Air Refueling Wing Commander 

Col. Mark Auer gave an overview of the 121st Air Refueling Wing. Rickenbacker also houses the Army Reserve, 

the Navy Reserve, the Marine Reserve, the Army Guard, and the Air National Guard; over 4,000 people.  The 

base started in 1942 and has a rich history including glider training, Women Air Force Service Pilots (WASP), 

B-17 training, Tuskegee Airmen, Strategic Air Command, KC-135s, etc. Guided tours are available.  

 

Proposed Resolution 06-16: “TO DESIGNATE THE CENTRAL OHIO RURAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 

ORGANIZATION AREA AND AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE OHIO 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR UP TO $450,000 WITH THE OHIO 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR ADMINISTRATION OF THE CENTRAL OHIO RURAL TRANSPORTATION 

PLANNING ORGANIZATION” – Thea Walsh, MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding Director 

Thea Walsh showed a map of the proposed Central Ohio Rural Transportation Planning Organization (RTPO) 

area which includes Fairfield, Knox, Madison, Marion, Morrow, Pickaway, and Union Counties. The counties 

met in May and developed an MOU with MORPC. All MOU’s will be signed by July 1. The RTPO planning 

process will be similar to the MPO planning process. 

  

Ike Stage made a motion to approve Resolution 06-16, second by Glenn Marzluf; motion passed. 

 

Proposed Resolution 07-16: “MORPC’S SUPPORT OF THE CITY OF DUBLIN, CITY OF MARYSVILLE AND UNION 

COUNTY’S APPLICATION FOR A U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ADVANCED TRANSPORTATION AND 

CONGESTION MANAGEMENT TECHNOLOGIES DEPLOYMENT GRANT FOR THE NW 33 INNOVATION CORRIDOR” 

– Thea Walsh, MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding Director 

Copies of Proposed Resolution 07-16 were provided.  MORPC, as the Metropolitan Planning Organization 

(MPO) for Central Ohio, identified the NW 33 Innovation Corridor project (ID: 906) in our 2016-2040 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan which was adopted May 12, 2016. This project advances our transportation 

system through the addition and testing of smart technologies. It will also leverage our rapid population 

growth and provide infrastructure to support the additional employment growth needed to sustain the region’s 

economy. 

A motion was made and seconded to approve Resolution 07-16; motion passed. 

 

Committees 

 

Regional Policy Roundtable – Kim Maggard, Regional Policy Roundtable Vice-Chair and Steve Tugend, Kegler 

Brown Hill + Ritter 

Kim Maggard reported the Regional Policy Roundtable met May 17, 2016 to discuss statehouse legislation 

including SB 235, SB 185, HB 528, and HB 12. This year’s Summit on Sustainability will include a policy track. 

Send topic suggestions to Laura Koprowski, Bevan Schneck or Joe Garrity. 

 

 Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 
Steve Tugend gave the legislative update and highlighted the following issues: 

o Mini lame duck session 

o SB 235 

o HB 12 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/06092016121stAirRefuelingWing.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/06092016RTPOMap.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/07-16%20NW%2033%20Innovation%20Corridor%20Resolution.pdf


Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 9, 2016 

Page 4 

 
o HB 528 

 

See the June 2016 Legislative Update for other legislative news. 

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee – Steve Stolte, Sustainability Advisory Committee Chair 

Steve Stolte presented the Sustainability Advisory Committee Report.  The 2017-2018 Regional Sustainability 

Agenda Sub-Committee held its first meeting June 9, 2016. The sub-committee chaired by Jim Schimmer, will 

work over the next few months to develop the 2017-2018 Regional Sustainability Agenda. A draft agenda will 

be presented to the Commission for feedback in November and then presented for adoption in December. 

 

This year’s Riverfest is in conjunction with the Columbus Arts Festival. Free canoeing and kayaking is available 

June 11, 12-4 p.m. at Battelle Park. Riverfest is a way to celebrate our waterways and educate about water 

quality. 

 

MORPC is now accepting nominations for the 2016 Green Region and 2016 Green Mobility Awards. The 

awards will be presented at the October 21, 2016 Summit on Sustainability. Nominations are due June 30 

and can be made online at www.morpc.org/summit. 

 

The Summit on Sustainability is being expanded this year to accommodate 750 guests and will include a 

morning plenary featuring prominent business leaders in sustainability and a lunch keynote program focused 

on local food. Registration is open at www.morpc.org/summit. MORPC is offering a special member rate. 

 

Transportation Policy Committee – Matt Greeson, MORPC Chair  

Chair Matt Greeson called the Transportation Policy Committee Session to order at 2:51 p.m. The session 

adjourned at 3:00 p.m. Separate minutes are attached. 

 

Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

Bryan Rhoads made a motion to approve the actions of the Transportation Policy Committee, second by Bill 

LaFayette; motion passed. 

 

Ben Collins made a motion to adjourn the Commission Meeting, second by Robert Myers; motion passed. 

 

The Commission Meeting adjourned at 3:01 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

Karen Angelou, Secretary 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/06092016MORPC-Legislative-Update.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/06092016SACReport.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/summit
http://www.morpc.org/summit


1 
 

 

 

MORPC Monthly Agency Report 

June 2016 

 
Public & Government Affairs  

Laura Koprowski – lkoprowski@morpc.org 

 

Public Involvement 

The Community Advisory Committee met May 31, 2016.  Items presented included the 

announcement of DATABus’ draft Transit Development Plan (TDP), the Acting FTA Administrator and 

Senator Sherrod Brown tour of COTA’s CMAX route, Air Quality Ozone re-designation, 2016-2019 TIP 

Amendment including Section 5307 Program of Projects, MORPC accepting funding applications for 

transportation projects, Rural Transportation Planning Organization, National Highway System, 

Homes on the Hill and TRAC accepting applications for projects.   

 

Government Affairs 

The Regional Policy Roundtable is looking for MORPC Commission Members interested in serving on 

its Public Policy Agenda Task Force. The purpose of the group is to provide leadership and input for 

creating a new two-year MORPC public policy agenda (2017-2018) to be adopted by the Commission 

in December. Meetings will take place August through October. Interested members should contact 

Regional Policy Roundtable Chair Steve Campbell at cam1ohio@hotmail.com or 614-564-7410. 

 

MORPC participated in a meeting on June 22, 2016 of several statewide local government 

associations convened by the Ohio Association of Regional Councils (OARC) to discuss possible 

opportunities of collaborative advocacy and public policy efforts with the General Assembly and 

Governor Kasich’s Administration. 

 

MORPC Public & Government Affairs Director Laura Koprowski received the John Bosley Leadership 

Award from the National Association of Regional Councils (NARC) in recognition of outstanding 

service and contributions to the regional community. She was distinguished for her vision for a new 

role for regional councils in cross-sector collaboration and public policy advocacy that is motivating 

new approaches for the entire regional community.   

 

Community Outreach 

MORPC’s Northeast Regional Collaboration meeting drew 27 participants from communities in 

Licking, Delaware and Franklin Counties.  Thank you to City of New Albany and City Manager Joe 

Stefanov for hosting the meeting. The reformatted program drew a positive reaction from 

participants. The primary goal of the meeting is to provide a platform for contiguous governments to 

share information on infrastructure projects and major developments. Similar meetings will occur 

this fall with local governments in the Southeast and Southwest areas of the region. 

Member Activities & Events 

See attached report for member activities. 

 

Media Relations 

See attached report of news releases and media coverage. 

 

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/lkoprowski@morpc.org
mailto:cam1ohio@hotmail.com


2 
 

Online Communications Efforts 

See attached report for social media and website activity.  

 

Transportation Systems & Funding  

Thea Walsh - twalsh@morpc.org 

 

Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) 

The U.S Department of Transportation announced Columbus as the winner of the $40 million Smart 

City Challenge. MORPC Team Members look forward to working with the City of Columbus on the 

Smart City projects and opening a regional dialogue on smart transportation technology. 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) 

The 2016-2040 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) Public Involvement Appendix is finalized and 

was approved by FHWA and ODOT. Copies of the final 2016-2040 MTP and its appendices will be 

sent to the reference departments of major libraries in the transportation planning area. The full plan 

is available on MORPC’s website here.  

 

Transit/Human Services 

Team Members participated in meetings with Groveport, Obetz , Mt. Carmel in Grove City, and Grove 

City staff regarding workforce mobility and transit service. 

 

DATABus 

The Delaware Gazette featured an article on DATABus’ public hearing on the draft Transit 

Development Plan and Funding Study. 

 

RideSolutions 

MORPC hosted an OARC event, “Planning the Future of Transportation Demand Management in 

Ohio”, for OARC’s Rideshare and Air Quality subcommittee. The keynote speaker was John Martin, 

President and CEO of the Southeastern Institute of Research, Inc. (SIR). Mike Norvell from SIR  led a 

discussion, followed by stakeholder input for the subcommittees’ TDM advancement and rideshare 

technology platform development. 

 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

The online application and update forms for local agencies seeking to apply for or maintain MORPC-

attributable funding process opened in early June. Updates to previous funding commitments were 

received through June 24. Requests for new funding were received through July 1. 

 

TIP Team Members attended the June Project Status Meeting at ODOT District 6. The Team also 

attended the kick-off meeting for the Columbus Traffic Signals System, Phase E project and 

Columbus’ South Hamilton Road project in the Eastland area. Other project development activities 

included: 

 Review of the feasibility study for Columbus' Refugee Road from Winchester Pike to Hamilton 

Road sidewalk and multi-use path project. 

 Review of Stage 2 plans for Pickerington's Refugee Road from Wheatfield to Woodstock 

major widening project. 

 Review of the feasibility study and Stage 1 plans for Dublin's Tuttle Crossing Boulevard 

Extension project. 

 Participation in a meeting to discuss Worthington's Worthington-Galena/Wilson 

Bridge/Huntley project (now known as the Northeast Gateway) with the City of Worthington, 

ODOT District 6 staff, and consultants. 

 Review of Stage 3 plans for Columbus' Polaris Parkway major widening project. 

  

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/twalsh@morpc.org
http://morpc.org/transportation/metropolitan-transportation-plan/2016-2040-plan/index


3 
 

Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) 

MORPC signed a contract with the Ohio Public Works Commission to receive $15,000 from the Clean 

Ohio Conservation Fund covering administrative costs for administrating this program in Franklin 

County (District3). 

 

The Natural Resources Assistance Council (NRAC) met to review and approve criteria and policies for 

Round 11. Round 11 preliminary applications for the Clean Ohio Conservation Fund program are due 

December 30, 2016, with final applications due March 17, 2017. District 3 has an allocation of 

$3,129,078. The NRAC is finalizing the design guidelines for Clean Ohio signage that must be 

erected at project sites that received Clean Ohio funds. One Round 10 project (Appalachia Ohio 

Alliance - Hancock Farm Conservation) withdrew, allowing the NRAC to award $345,000 in additional 

funding to the Franklin County Big Walnut Creek Parkland Preservation project to purchase 17 more 

acres. The Westerville Spring Run Restoration project was also awarded $412,050. At the end of 

Round 10, the NRAC will have $1,018,223 in unspent funding to add to the Round 11 allocation. 

 

Transportation Review Advisory Council (TRAC) 

The application deadline for the 2016 TRAC cycle was June 30, 2016. MORPC submitted emails 

acknowledging the applications to the applicants, as required by the TRAC application process. ODOT 

staff will review and score all applications received over the summer, with public hearings scheduled 

in October. 

 

Data and Mapping 

Nancy Reger - nreger@morpc.org 

 

Regional Data Lab 

The membership of the Regional Data Advisory Committee is nearly established and the first 

Regional Data Advisory Committee meeting is scheduled for July 21.   

 

New Interactive Maps 

 The updated version of the Bike User interactive web map went live. 

 Freight Story Map is under development with a projected launch in early July. 

 

Participation at Conferences and Meetings 

 Intelligent Communities Forum (ICF) Summit – Urban Master Class 

 2016 Esri (GIS) International User Conference 

 Presentation of the Active Transportation Plan at the URISA GIS and Health Symposium in 

Washington, DC 

 

Regional Involvement 

 MORPC is working with ODOT and the FHWA  as the test MPO to implement Safety Analyst 

because of the quality of its transportation data files. Safety Analyst is a set of software tools 

used by state and local highway agencies for highway safety management. Safety 

Analyst implements state-of-the-art analytical procedures for use in the decision-making 

process to identify and manage a system-wide program of site-specific improvements to 

enhance highway safety by cost-effective means. Safety Analyst was developed as a 

cooperative effort by FHWA and participating state and local agencies.  

 Team Members continue to provide data management support to the MPO Attributable 

Funds program. 

 Data & Mapping Team Members participated in the Franklin County 911 Planning Committee 

and Technical Advisory Committee meeting. 

 Bikeways are now available for editing by communities participating in the cooperative 

regional GIS system that also includes sidewalks, roads, and addresses.   

file:///C:/Users/shufstedler/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/QEPGBLFF/nreger@morpc.org
http://apps.morpc.org/bikemap/


4 
 

 MORPC Team Members conducted training on using the new interactive map and the 

accompanying indexing tool developed for Homes on the Hill, a CDC located on the west side 

of Franklin County. 

 A draft of the activity and vitality index analysis, including maps and peer community profile, 

was presented at the insight2050 Executive Committee meeting. 

 

Support for Members 

 Prepared a Buckeye Hills area map made for Perry County Gateway project, for presentation 

to governor's office. 

 Supplied Active Transportation and MTP GIS data to Delaware County Regional Planning 

Commission. 

 Provided traffic count and road data to OSU’s Center for Urban & Regional Analysis.  

 Supplied population forecast data to the Pataskala YMCA and to the Columbus Compact. 

 

Planning and Environment 

Kerstin Carr - kcarr@morpc.org 

 

Active Transportation Planning 

Team Members participated in this year’s OSU Summer Youth Program and presented about 

MORPC, general planning principles, and tactical urbanism approaches. 

 

MORPC Team Members participated in the Ohio Bicycle Federation Conference Call and discussed 

current initiatives related to advancing bicycling in the state along with current policy efforts.  

 

Team Members participated in the Statewide Active Transportation Team Conference call and 

discussed the progress that was made on the plan's strategies and outlined next steps for 

participants. MORPC’s main contribution is related to non-motorized data collection and safety data 

support. 

 

Transportation Safety 

Team Members attended the Safe Communities General Body Coalition Meeting to discuss current 

transportation safety educational initiatives, including Click-It-Or-Ticket and motorcycle safety. 

 

insight2050 

Team Members worked with its web design team at Madison & Fifth to create an insight2050 Case 

Study website and Resource Library. The Case Study website hosts examples of developments that 

demonstrate connection to the findings of insight2050. The Resource Library provides tools, data, 

photos and best practices primarily for use by local governments and the real estate development 

community. The websites were presented to the insight2050 Executive Committee. 

 

Murphy Epson presented its draft communications/outreach plan to the Communications 

Committee. This plan will be the framework for a resident engagement toolkit designed to assist 

local governments and the real estate development community to facilitate conversations with 

Central Ohio residents.  

 

Team Members hosted the insight2050 Executive Committee for its 2nd quarter meeting. Agenda 

items included an update on Phase II tool development (outreach, case study website, resource 

library, mapping tools) and an introduction to Phase III: MORPC Local Technical Assistance Program. 

 

Team Members attended the Franklin County Retail Summit hosted by the Columbus Chamber and 

Franklin County. Yaromir Steiner, insight2050 Executive Committee Chair, addressed the impacts of 

Central Ohio’s population growth and changing demographics on retail to the 400-person audience. 

 

mailto:kcarr@morpc.org


5 
 

Team Members attended “Golf & Gigabits at the Memorial Tournament,” hosted by City of Dublin. 

Discussion focused on the city’s regional approach to business and community development with 

topics including Connected Vehicles research and Smart City Challenge; Dublin 100 gig Transport 

network; and the Intelligent Communities Forum Institute.  

 

insight2050 was presented to the Columbus Green Team, The Ohio State University Conservation 

Planning Class, and the Clintonville Rotary Organization.  

 

Age-Friendly Columbus 

Team Members presented Age-Friendly Columbus to the Chronic Disease Prevention Advisory Board. 

The presentation relates to the Board’s focus areas of active living, clean air, and healthy eating.  

 

Team Members attended the Health Map 2016 CMC luncheon to hear about the highest health risk 

factors in older adult populations, and how medical providers and institutions want to assist them. 

 

The Age-Friendly Columbus Advisory Council updated its members on the progress of the project and 

next steps. A major point of discussion was the assessment (data collection, site assessments, and 

older adults’ preference survey) and pilot neighborhoods. 

 

MORPC Team Members participated in the AARP-facilitated Age-Friendly peer exchange in Denver, 

Colorado where best practices were shared with other age-friendly communities and both Regional 

and Metropolitan Planning Organizations. 

 

Central Ohio Greenways (COG) Board  

The COG Trail Development Working Team met to discuss the draft design guidelines document 

template and to review the draft maps produced through meetings with jurisdictions in each Franklin 

County quadrant. 

 

Water Quality Working Group Review Committee  

The Water Quality Working Group Review Committee prioritized issues for its working group to 

address and discussed vision and mission statements. 

 

Water Quality Working Group  

Team Members facilitated the Water Quality Working Group and updates were provided to the group 

on policy, the Review Committee, and Riverfest. Other topics included the William C. Habig 

Collaborative Achievement Award, and developing a water resources session for the Summit on 

Sustainability. 

 

Riverfest  

Riverfest was a success with over 160 people on the water kayaking and canoeing. Riverfest 

partnered with the Columbus Arts Festival. 

 

Team Members attended the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) meeting at 

the Franklin County Engineer’s Office. The meeting focused on updating Franklin County’s 

Stormwater Management Plan and the roles for everyone at the meeting. MORPC will review the 

plan. 

 

Team Members presented to elementary school teachers participating in the Metro Parks Summer 

Teach Program. The presentation was focused on how MORPC serves the region with regard to all of 

our areas of focus: transportation, water, development, energy, air quality, local foods, public policy, 

etc. Other organizations were also present, including, but not limited to, SWACO, soil and water 

conservation districts, and Metro Parks. 

 



6 
 

Summit on Sustainability 

The Summit on Sustainability is October 21 at the Hilton Downtown. The Sustainability Advisory 

Committee approved the theme: "Feeding our Economy." Team Members are currently discussing 

ideas for the breakfast keynote & panel discussion as well as organizing the various breakout 

sessions. 

 

Green Pact 

MORPC facilitated the Central Ohio Green Pact where they shared updates on their sustainability 

efforts and toured the City of Columbus Fleet Management Facility. 

 

Energy & Air Quality 

Christina O'Keeffe - cokeeffe@morpc.org 

 

Air Quality 

MORPC issued an Air Quality Alert on June 20 for Central Ohio. The AQI was forecasted to reach 105. 

The alert received coverage in The Columbus Dispatch and a segment on air pollution on ABC6.  

 

Air Quality Team Members entered into a contract with Sinclair Media Group/ABC6 for a 

comprehensive marketing package for an air quality awareness campaign. The campaign began in 

June and extends through the summer. The campaign will help in the promotion of air quality alert 

email signups, public information about what to do in the event of an alert, and how to reduce 

individual contributions to air pollution. The package will provide video public service 

announcements, social media promotion, email marketing, display advertising, and two morning 

show appearances. The firm has guaranteed 150,000 household impressions for the PSAs, and 

150,000 emails deployed for the email campaign.   

 

MORPC Air Quality and the Transportation Demand Management Teams continue to work on the 

Commuter Challenge campaign which is in partnership with CoGo, COTA, and car2go. Central 

Ohioans are encouraged to replace any single-occupant vehicle commutes with one of the eligible 

sustainable modes (carpool, vanpool, bike, bus, walking, carshare). When commuters log these 

sustainable commutes at www.makeyourmilesmatter.com, they become eligible for daily prizes and 

grand prizes at the conclusion of the contest. As of June 20, 540 people had participated, reducing 

Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) in the region by 46,164, and reducing greenhouse gas emissions by 

35,823 lbs. in the region.  

 

On June 20, 2016, ABC6 included an interview segment with MORPC Team Members about the 

Commuter Challenge on its morning show "Good Day Marketplace" and was also included in the 

Columbus Dispatch that same day. On June 28, 2016, the Air Quality Program promoted air quality 

awareness and encouraged Central Ohioans to sign up to receive Air Quality Alerts on "Good Day 

Marketplace". A wrap-up event is planned for July 6, 2016 at noon at Columbus Commons, where 

grand prize winners will be announced. Free ice cream will be provided by Jeni’s Splendid Ice Creams 

for the first 100 visitors. 

 

In 2012, the U.S. EPA designated nonattainment areas for the 2008 eight-hour ozone standard. 

Delaware, Fairfield, Franklin, Knox, Licking and Madison Counties were designated nonattainment 

for the Columbus area. Air quality monitoring data collected between 2012 and 2014 in the region 

demonstrated attainment of the National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS.) Energy & Air 

Quality Working Group members provided feedback on a draft comment letter by MORPC in support 

of the draft re-designation of the Columbus Region to attainment for ozone pollution for the 2008 

eight-hour standard for ozone. The draft letter was presented to the Sustainability Advisory 

Committee, Community Advisory Committee, Transportation Advisory Committee, and Executive 

Committee for input. MORPC submitted comments to Ohio EPA on June 2, 2016.   

 

file:///C:/Users/cklein/Desktop/cokeeffe@morpc.org
http://www.makeyourmilesmatter.com/
http://myfox28columbus.com/good-day-columbus/good-day-marketplace/gdm-mid-ohio-regional-planning-commission-morpc-06-20-2016
http://myfox28columbus.com/good-day-columbus/good-day-marketplace/gdm-mid-ohio-regional-planning-commission-morpc-06-28-2016


7 
 

Energy Special Improvement Districts (E-SIDs) and Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE)  

MORPC continues to work with Columbus-Franklin County Finance Authority, City of Columbus and 

other local government members interested in joining the shared regional PACE district.   

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee 

Based on discussion with the Sustainability Advisor Committee's subcommittee group, Team 

Members began to organize the current goals under the umbrella of the MTP Regional Goals. With 

this action, MORPC can connect the sustainability work with the existing long-term transportation 

plans. Team Members are reaching out to the working groups for their input on the goals. The next 

meeting of the subcommittee is on July 14, 2016.   

 

Energy Policy  

MORPC Team Members are working on finalizing the messages aligned with the approved Energy 

Policy position by the Commission: 

 

"MORPC opposes the indefinite freeze of the Ohio energy mandates. In addition, MORPC supports a 

combination of incentives and mandates to help achieve the goals of increased energy efficiency 

and renewable energy for diversity in our energy mix along with determining the best approach for 

maximizing the credit of advanced energy projects."   

 

Meetings with state elected officials will be organized to inform them of MORPC’s position. The first 

meeting was held with Representative Leland in June 2016 and additional meetings will be 

conducted in late Summer/early Fall. 

 

Materials Management Working Group   

A follow up meeting was held in June with the working group chair and vice-chair to discuss the 

results of the discussion at the May working group meeting, and to further develop ideas to shape 

the future direction of the working group. This discussion will continue at the next working group 

meeting on July 27 at MORPC.  

 

Franklin County Urgent Needs  

MORPC Team Members are wrapping up the 2014 funding round of the Franklin County Urgent 

Needs program which now runs through June of 2016. Currently 100 percent of the units are 

completed. 

   

Approximately 98% of the Franklin County Urgent Needs Program jobs are in stages of production 

from, initial inspections to bidding, and commitment, while the remaining units are in construction or 

are completed.  

 

HWAP production remained steady through June resulting in MORPC achieving 75 percent of our 

completion goal for the program year ending June 30, 2016. Additional in-progress jobs that were 

not completed by the end of June will carry forward to the next program year. The State of Ohio 

conducted Technical and Administrative monitoring visits the week of June 13. MORPC received 

positive feedback on work quality and for achieving substantial energy reductions. The monitoring 

reports with the overall findings are expected to be received in July.   

 

The 2015-2016 State of Ohio EPP Program has been underway since July 1 with a dedicated focus 

on baseload audits to support MORPC’s increased funding allocation of $300,000. Additional efforts 

were made by Team Members to increase production and MORPC expects to receive additional 

funds above the original allocation due to a steady increase in production. The 2015-2016 program 

year comes to an end on June 30.   

 



8 
 

Due to MORPC’s high production performance in the AEP-CAP program, American Electric Power has 

increased MORPC’s funding allocation by an additional $125,000 through the remainder of the 

program year ending December 31, 2016. With this additional funding MORPC will focus on AEP-CAP 

weatherization measures that can be leveraged with our WarmChoice and HWAP jobs.   

 

Administration 

Shawn Hufstedler – shufstedler@morpc.org 

 

Cubicle Moves 

Thirty-three MORPC Team Members were moved to new cubicles to more closely align teams and 

improve efficiencies. 

 

Audit 

The Executive Committee approved the annual Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) at the 

June 2, 2016 Executive Committee meeting. MORPC received a clean report with no findings. 

MORPC also submitted the 2015 CAFR to the Government Finance Officers Association and believes 

our report will qualify for the 28th consecutive Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 

Reporting. The Auditor of State’s office approved our CAFR after their desk review, with no concerns.  

 

Personnel Updates 

Data Management Intern Alex Jokerst began June 6 

Competitive Advantage Program Manager Nathaniel Kaelin began June 13  

GIS Intern Seth Tribby began June 20 

Energy & Air Quality Temp Jeremy Bredeson began June 27 

 

Currently, MORPC is recruiting for three open positions:  

 Customer Service and Outreach Intern 

 Transportation Systems and Funding Intern 

 HVAC Service Technician/Installer 

 

The requirements for these positions are available for review on the website at 

http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/job-opportunities/index.  

 

RFP/RFQ Postings 

The following RFP’s/RFQ’s are posted: 

 Hotel Room and Event Space for Mid-America Trails & Greenways Conference (closed June 

30, 2016) 

 RFQ for HVAC Contractor for Residential Energy Program 

 RFQ for Insulation Contractor for Residential Energy Program 

 

The full RFP/RFQs are available at http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/rfps-rfqs/index. 

 

 

 

  

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/shufstedler@morpc.org
http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/job-opportunities/index
http://www.morpc.org/about-morpc/overview/rfps-rfqs/index


9 
 

ATTACHMENT 

Membership News   

The “Best Social Media Practices for Local Government” workshop drew 58 participants. Hosted at 

Columbus State Community College’s Workforce Development Center, CSCC President Dr. Harrison 

kicked off the half-day event by welcoming workshop participants. Many of the MORPC Local 

Government Program Summer Interns also attended. This year’s workshop program focused on the 

increased use of social media to provide timely safety and security information as well as provide a 

means to have impactful community conversation. Community spotlights were provided by Hilliard, 

New Albany, Whitehall and Bexley.  

 

MORPC hosted its annual Village Members Luncheon on June 23, 2016. The interactive program 

among village mayors and administrators with MORPC Team Members focused on a variety of top 

issues facing these communities, available MORPC programs for their village residents, and new 

funding and community resources.  

 

Online Communications Activities 

MORPC’s online/social media efforts for June provide the following results: 

 MORPC’s Facebook page is now Facebook-verified, meaning it will show up sooner in peope’s 

search results. During June the page gained more than 85 page likes, passing the 3,600 mark. 

There were 72 MORPC Facebook posts during May, with some additional Facebook advertising 

for the Commuter Challenge. By far the most popular post of the month was the Smart City 

announcement that linked to the Dispatch article. This post reached 13.6k people, with more 

than 450 reactions, comments, and shares. In comparison the second-most popular post was on 

COTA’s federal grant for the Cleveland Avenue BRT, which reached 2,328 and had 76 reactions, 

comments, and shares. 

 

 MORPC had about 53.4k tweet impressions during June – slightly down from May. But our 

followers on Twitter continued to increase, now up to 2,978. There was also quite a bit of activity 

based on the Smart City announcement. Out of more than 85 tweets during the month of June, 

our top tweet was a picture highlighting the Commuter Challenge and COTA’s #DumpThePump 

day. This tweet had more than 3,000 impression. Our top media tweet (those that contain 

pictures, graphics, videos, etc.) was from the June 20th Air Quality Alert, and our top mention was 

from CD102.5 owner Randy Malloy, who had participated in the Commuter Challenge by taking 

his entire staff to a Clippers game on COTA. 

 

 MORPC’s Instagram is growing, with posts such as the Smart City announcement and MORPC’s 

annual summer picnic. This platform is used as a “behind the scenes” creative view of MORPC. It 

currently has 409 followers. It’s possible the account could be switching from “centralohio” to 

“morpc” soon, which will help increase followers. 

 

 In June, MORPC.org had nearly 28k external pageviews with 8.8k users – increases from last 

month. There were more than 12.5k sessions (periods of active engagement). 71.5% of the 

sessions were in Columbus, followed by Dublin, Westerville, and Gahanna. 61% percent of the 

sessions were from new visitors (those who hadn’t been on the site in the past 30 days). 

 

MORPC in the News 

Commissioners to pursue rural transportation plan- Mount Vernon News 

Chamber’s Government Day Considers Education, Transportation – Columbus Underground 

Westerville begins search for funding grants – Westerville News & Public Opinion 

Future of Columbus’ transportation – WOSU All Sides with Ann Fisher 

Use fee to fix, repave streets – The Columbus Dispatch/Letter to the Editor 

New at the 2016 Columbus Arts Festival – Columbus Alive 

Hot in the City: Urban temperatures are rising faster than in rural areas – Columbus Alive 



10 
 

Festival shows off city's work of art – The Columbus Dispatch 

Perfect weekend for festivals leads to air quality alert – WSYX/WTTE/ABC6 

Kristen Easterday leaves Columbus Chamber of Commerce – Columbus Business First 

Port Columbus parent hires 1st government affairs director - Columbus Business First 

Program lets Boston commuters drive some, cycle the rest – Boston Associated Press 

City Quotient: A relic of Samuel B. Hartman's legacy – Columbus Monthly 

Columbus, OH Wins $50M Smart City Challenge – Business Facilities Magazine 

Bike trail vandalism subsides – Madison Press 

Columbus wins USDOT’s $50 million Smart City Challenge – Equipment World 

State project could boost safety in city – Worthington News 

Central Ohio on alert Monday for Air Quality Warning – WSYX/WTTE/ABC6/On Your Side 

MORPC Issues Smog alert – The Columbus Dispatch 

Commuter Challenge – WSYX/WTTE/ABC6/Good Day Marketplace 

BREAKING: Columbus beats six other cities to win $50M Smart City Challenge – Columbus Business 

First 

Proposed hike could lead to better roads – Delaware News 

Smog alert continues today for Columbus – The Columbus Dispatch 

Air Quality Alerts – WSYX/WTTE/ABC6/Good Day Marketplace 

Roundabout out ‘Alternative E’ Chosen -Pickerington Times-Sun 

OH: Kristen Easterday Joins Columbus Regional Airport Authority – Aviation Pros 



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

 

DATE: 

 

July 8, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 10-16: "ESTABLISHING AN AGENCY 

OPERATING RESERVE POLICY" 

 
 

 

Beginning in 2015 the Reserve and Investment Advisory Committee was tasked with 

determining an operating reserve policy and identifying mechanisms to fund the 

reserve in order to improve financial stability. For an entity like MORPC, mitigation of 

risks like delayed payments, program losses, and emergencies is desired and 

imperative to long-term fiscal strength similar to other local governments. This has 

become an increasingly higher priority as MORPC’s work and funding sources have 

diversified, as well as an increasingly volatile economy impacts MORPC programs 

and partners. 

 

The Reserve Committee determined a strategy to increase financial stability, 

encourage revenue development, and provide a policy encouraging a consistent and 

fiscally conservative reserve approach. The committee determined a short term goal 

of reaching a 60 day operating reserve, with a longer term goal of a 90-180 day 

operating reserve.  

 

Upon a review of available financing tools, the following surfaced as the most likely 

options:  partial repurposing of building sale proceeds; funding via future program net 

income; and seeking additional support from members.  

 

The short term goal of reaching a 60 day operating reserve was identified as a high 

agency priority. As a result of this priority and available funding options, the 

Committee recommended using the building sale proceeds to fund the operating 

reserve in 2016. Under this recommendation, the previously transferred building sale 

proceeds of $800,000 plus an additional $1,000,000 would be repurposed to 

provide an operating reserve meeting the short term goal.  

 

The long term goal of reaching a 90-180 day reserve is expected to take up to 20 

years or more and requires multiple approaches. One funding source is future 

income from programs like events and fee for service programs at MORPC that can 

help fund the reserve. Another is the increase and expansion of the purpose of the 



Memo 

Proposed Resolution 10-16 

Page 2 

building dues from $0.035 per capita back to the $0.07 per capita, which was cut in 

half in 2007. These building/operating reserve dues as identified in resolution 09-16 

can be used for building costs and to help fund the operating reserve as determined 

by the commission.  

 

Additional funds earned from events and fee for service programs will be dedicated 

to program use and a management reserve. This management reserve may help 

mitigate the need to use the operating reserve in some cases as well as build 

available funds to create more revenue generating programs. The intent is to develop 

new revenue positive programs in order to further MORPC services to local 

governments which if successful will replenish and grow the management reserve. 

This management reserve will be a management level policy developed by the 

executive director, with any use of the management reserve approved by the 

Commission within the agency budget. The Reserve and Investment Advisory 

Committee recommends $100,000 from the building sale funds be made available 

for the management reserve once internally developed.  

 

As a result of the above recommendations, and subsequent to adoption of this 

Operating Reserve Policy, it is anticipated that the Reserve and Investment 

Committee will evaluate and determine investment options and amounts in the 

building sale fund and the operating reserve.  

 

The Operating Reserve Policy distinguishes between uses of operating cash flow and 

emergencies, including the conditions for use, authorization and replenishment, and 

reporting and monitoring. Any use of the operating reserve must be authorized by the 

commission via the budgeting and appropriating process prior to the use of any funds 

for either operating or emergency use in any given circumstance. Consistent with 

other financial duties of the Commission, the Operating Reserve Policy establishes 

that investment oversight resides with Executive Committee, which will receive 

regular reports on the use of operating reserve funds, if any, as well as plans and 

progress toward replenishing any used operating reserve funds.   

 

Attachment:  Resolution 10-16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 10-16 

 

“ESTABLISHING AN AGENCY OPERATING RESERVE POLICY” 

 

WHEREAS, the Reserve and Investment Advisory Committee was tasked with determining an operat-

ing reserve policy and identifying mechanisms to fund the reserve in order to improve MORPC’s fi-

nancial stability; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Reserve and Investment Advisory Committee determined a short term operating re-

serve goal of 60 days’ worth of funding and a long term goal of 90-180 days; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Reserve and Investment Advisory Committee determined a strategy to encourage 

revenue development resulting in a recommendation to establish a management reserve adminis-

tered by the executive director to further MORPC services to local governments; and 

 

WHEREAS, funding for the operating reserve is expected to come from diverse sources including the 

building reserve fund, cash currently available in the operating cash account, and other sources that 

may be allocated such as a portion of proceeds from events or programs with positive net income; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, funding for the management reserve is also expected to come from diverse sources in-

cluding the building reserve fund and other sources that may be allocated such as a portion of pro-

ceeds from events or programs with positive net income; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Reserve and Investment Advisory Committee recommends funding the short term 

goal of 60 days this year from building sale proceeds and funds currently available in the operating 

cash account; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the Commission adopts the attached Operating Reserve Policy.  

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to make $1,000,000 currently in the build-

ing sales proceeds available for the operating reserve. 

 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to make $100,000 currently in the building 

sales proceeds available for the management reserve, once internally established.   

 

Section 4. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 5.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

 

 

                                                                                

Matt Greeson, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 



Resolution 10-16 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Effective date: July 14, 2016 

Submitted by: Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

Prepared by:  Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: July 14, 2016 

Attachment(s): MORPC Operating Reserve Policy 

 

 



 
  

 
MORPC 
OPERATING 
RESERVE 
POLICY 

  July 14, 2016 



 MORPC Operating Reserve Policy 

OPERATING RESERVE POLICY 

BACKGROUND 

For Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) to deliver on its mission, it is imperative to 

maintain financial stability.  Establishing an operating reserve is a mechanism that governments can 

implement to ensure adequate levels of cash balances are available to mitigate current and future risks. 

POLICY STATEMENT 

The primary objective of this policy is to establish an operating reserve for MORPC that will permit the 

organization to continue to operate during difficult financial times. The following are two types of 

operating reserves addressed within this policy: 

 

 Operating Cash Flow: Maintain adequate level of cash for day-to-day operations. 

 Emergencies: Accommodate unusual and/or unforeseen emergency cash needs. 

 

LEVEL OF FUNDING 

The target reserve level is 60 days’ worth of funding up to 90 days or more based on the annual budget 

approved by the Commission. While the initial target reserve amount is 60 days, the intent is to increase 

the reserve level to 90 days or more over time. Generally 30 days or more worth of budgeted expenses 

will be maintained in the operating cash account.  The remainder of the operating reserve will be 

determined by the Investment Advisory Committee in accordance with the Investment Policy.  

 

Funding for the reserve will come from diverse areas.  Initially the short term reserve comes from the 

combination of current funds available from the operating cash account at the time and a transfer of 

funds from the building sale proceeds account.  To obtain the long term goal, additional funds will be 

allocated to the reserve from various sources as established by the Commission.  

 

Annually an amount should be built into the budget and appropriations to build the operating reserve. 

 

The operating reserve will be invested in accordance with the Investment Policy. 

 

CONDITIONS FOR USE 

Operating Cash Flow: 

The operating cash flow reserve is intended to provide an internal source of funds for situations 

that would interrupt the normal day-to-day operations as determined by management to the 

extent authorized by the Commission.   

 1 



 
MORPC Operating Reserve Policy 

Emergencies: 

The emergency reserve is intended to provide an internal source of funds for situations such as a 

sudden increase in expenses, one-time unbudgeted expenses, unanticipated loss in funding, 

uninsured losses and other emergency needs as determined by the Commission. The 

Commission may delegate authority to the Executive Committee to authorize emergency use to 

the extent that the funds have been budgeted and appropriated.  

 

AUTHORIZATION AND REPLENISHMENT 

The use of operating reserves must be adequately appropriated and budgeted. Earnings from the 

operating reserve investments will be retained within the operating reserve, unless otherwise budgeted 

and appropriated by the Commission. The use of the reserve must be accompanied by a description of 

the analysis and determination of the use along with plans for replenishing the reserve. The analysis 

must include identification of whether the use is anticipated to be a one-time issue or expense or likely to 

be multiple occurrences.  

 
Operating Cash Flow: 

Authority is given to the executive director for the chief financial officer or finance director as 

otherwise authorized to transfer up to $500,000 per occurrence into the main operating account 

from the remainder of the operating reserve in consultation with the Chair of the Reserve and 

Investment Advisory Committee and the Chair of the Executive Committee.  The maximum 

cumulative amount of transfer into the main operating account at any given time is $500,000 

without additional approval from the Commission. 

 

Emergencies: 
The executive director must receive prior approval from the Commission, or the Executive 

Committee if so delegated by the Commission, for use of funds in an emergency. 

REPORTING AND MONITORING 

The chief financial officer (CFO) is responsible for ensuring that the Operating Reserve is maintained and 

used only as described in this Policy.  Upon approval for the use of the Operating Reserve, the CFO will 

ensure adequate maintainance of records of the use of funds and plan for replenishment.   He/she will 

ensure adequate and regular reporting to the Executive Committee of progress to restore the fund. 

 

The ultimate responsibility for investment oversight resides with the Executive Committee. The 

Chair of the Reserve and Investment Advisory Committee shall monitor the investment portfolio for 

compliance with this policy. 

 

Quarterly the CFO will ensure adequate reporting to the Executive Committee any activities of the 

operating reserve to demonstrate compliance with the operating reserve policy. 

 

2 



 
TT 
 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 

Columbus, Ohio 43215 

T 614.228.2663 

TTY 614.228.2663 

www.morpc.org 



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

 

DATE: 

 

July 8, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 08-16: "ESTABLISHING MAXIMUM PER-

CAPITA FEES FOR 2017 TO 2021" 

 
 

 

Per the MORPC Bylaws, every five years “the COMMISSION shall establish a five-year 

fee schedule which it shall not exceed when adopting fees for each upcoming year.” 

The Commission will establish the actual membership fees for the following year by 

resolution each July. At that time, a detailed budget for the uses of the per-capita 

membership fees is developed and presented for approval. The 2017 maximum 

members’ per-capita fees are $0.5375 with a $1,000 minimum. The actual 

members’ per-capita fees that are being assessed in 2017 are also $0.5375. 

 

With the exception of certain periods including 2008 through 2012 when members’ 

per-capita fees were not increased due to unfavorable economic conditions in the 

region, members’ per-capita fees have typically increased by $0.015 per year, which 

has been the case over the past four years.  

 

In 2007, the building dues were decreased from $0.07 per capita to $0.035 cents 

per capita. 2007 was the year the old building was sold and MORPC began leasing its 

current office space. Revisiting current and future needs including consideration of a 

renewed lease at higher cost or a new lease or purchase in a higher price per square 

foot market, the reversion back to $0.07 per capita is desired.  

 

Consistent with the above considerations, an estimated increase of $0.0175 per 

year for 2017 and 2018 is proposed with $0.01 per capita increases for 2019 

through 2021, as further described in Proposed Resolution 09-16 for planning and 

reference purposes.  

 

The maximum per-capita fees in the attached Proposed Resolution 08-16 begins with 

$0.5375 in 2017, which is also the 2017 annual actual rate included within 

Proposed Resolution 09-16. 

 

 

 



Memo 

Proposed Resolution 08-16 

Page 2 

The proposed five-year maximum per-capita fees are: 

 

  2017   $0.5375 

  2018   $0.5700 

  2019   $0.6000 

  2020   $0.6300 

  2021   $0.6600 

 

This maximum per-capita fees schedule allows for additional fee increases beyond 

the estimated/planned rate in the event of additional need including any new 

initiatives the Commission would like to undertake.  

 

Attachment: Resolution 08-16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 08-16 

 

“ESTABLISHING MAXIMUM PER-CAPITA MEMBERSHIP FEES FOR 2017-2021” 

 

WHEREAS, the MORPC Bylaws require that every five years “the COMMISSION shall establish a five-

year fee schedule which it shall not exceed when adopting fees for each upcoming year”; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission will establish the actual per-capita membership fees each July for the 

following calendar year; and 

 

WHEREAS, the fees shown below are recommended by the staff and the Executive Committee; now 

therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the maximum per-capita membership fees over the next five years shall not ex-

ceed: 

 

  2017   $0.5375 

  2018   $0.5700 

  2019   $0.6000 

  2020   $0.6300 

  2021   $0.6600 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute 
and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he 
shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 
Section 3.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and ac-

tions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolu-
tion were taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 
 

 

                                                                                

Matt Greeson, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: July 14, 2016 

Submitted by: Executive Committee 

Prepared by:  Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: July 14, 2016 

 



 

Memorandum 
 
TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Director of Operations 

 

DATE: 

 

July 1, 2016 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 09-16: " ADOPTING A FEE SCHEDULE FOR USE IN 

ASSESSING MEMBERS IN 2017" 

 

 

This resolution adopts the 2017 membership fee schedule. Regularly increasing the 

dues by relatively small amounts in order to carry on the efforts of the Commission 

has been preferred over more infrequent but larger increases. This resolution 

proposes the 2017 rate in accordance with a new five year plan. 

 

The current (2016) rate of $0.52 includes $0.035 restricted to building costs, 

$0.195 for Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) federal matching fund 

requirements, and $0.29 for MORPC services to members, development, and other 

local activities of the agency. Members located outside of the MPO boundaries pay 

dues at the reduced rate of $0.325, which excludes the MPO portion of the dues.  

 

The 2017 rate recommendation is $0.5375 including $0.0525 restricted to building 

costs and/or operating reserve, $0.195 for Metropolitan Planning Organization 

(MPO) federal matching fund requirements, and $0.29 for MORPC services to 

members, development, and other local activities of the agency. Members located 

outside of the MPO boundaries pay dues at the reduced rate of $0.3425, which 

excludes the MPO portion of the dues. The use of the building/operating reserve 

dues will be identified in the annual budget formally adopted by the Commission in 

December.  

 

Per MORPC’s Bylaws: 

• Each year the COMMISSION shall adopt a fee schedule in July to be used 

in assessing members for the upcoming calendar year.   

• Every five years the COMMISSION shall establish a five-year fee schedule 

which it shall not exceed when adopting fees for each upcoming year (i.e. 

maximum dues schedule).   

• Each year the Commission shall provide a non-binding estimate of fees 

for the next five (5) years for members to use in their financial planning.   

 
This last bullet indicating an estimated or planned dues schedule will be presented 

with the annual fee schedule each year, with any updated planned rates if applicable. 



Memo 

Proposed Resolution 09-16 

Page 2 

Note that the planned rates are not approved via resolution each year, but instead 

included via memo only for reference and planning purposes. 

 

The planned five-year dues rates schedule for 2017-2021 is presented below, 

represented in cents per capita.  

 

 Planned Rate 

2017  53.75  

2018  55.50  

2019  56.50 

2020  57.50 

2021  58.50 

 

The above is further detailed as follows to show the expected increase area in each 

year: 

 

 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Building/Reserve 5.25 cents 7 cents 7 cents 7 cents 7 cents 

RPC 29 cents 29 cents 30 cents 31 cents 32 cents 

Total RPC 34.25 cents 36 cents 37 cents 38 cents 39 cents 

MPO 19.5 cents 19.5 cents 19.5 cents 19.5 cents 19.5 cents 

Total MPO 53.75 cents 55.5 cents 56.5 cents 57.5 cents 58.5 cents 

 

 

The population estimates for members will be completed in Autumn 2016 and will 

show each members’ dues amount for 2017. The 2017 projection will be presented 

as part of the process to establish and adopt the 2017 budget and will be presented 

for formal adoption by the Commission in December of this year.  

 

 

Attachment: Resolution 09-16 



RESOLUTION 09-16 

 

“ADOPTING A FEE SCHEDULE FOR USE IN ASSESSING MEMBERS IN 2017” 

 

WHEREAS, the financial provisions of the MORPC Bylaws require that the Commission adopt a fee 

schedule in July of each year to be used in assessing members for the upcoming calendar year; and 

 

WHEREAS, the below rate is consistent with the proposed “maximum per-capita membership fee” 

included for Commission consideration in Resolution 08-16 for 2017 through 2021; and 

 

WHEREAS, a planned dues schedule has been established that shows the expected rates for 2017 

through 2021 to help with long-term planning for both MORPC members and MORPC staff; and  

 

WHEREAS, a 2017 projection for member dues and related uses will be presented as part of the 

process to establish and adopt the 2017 budget and will be presented for formal adoption by the 

Commission in December; now therefore,  

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1: That a 2017 per-capita fee of $0.5375 with a minimum of $1,000 is hereby adopted 

for members of the Metropolitan Planning Organization and a reduced per-capita fee 

of $0.3425 with a minimum of $1,000 is hereby adopted for members of the 

Regional Planning Commission. 

 

Section 2: The $0.0525 per-capita portion (included within the $0.5375 and $0.3425 rates) of 

the dues for the building and operating reserve for 2017 is included to pay a portion 

of building lease payments and fund the operating reserve as subsequently budgeted 

by this Commission and is hereby adopted. 

 

Section 3: That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 4: That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

 

________________________________________ 
                         Matt Greeson, Chair  

             Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

 

Effective date:  July 14, 2016 

Submitted by:  Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

Prepared by:   Shawn Hufstedler, Chief of Staff & Finance Director 

Authority:   Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date:  July 14, 2016 

Attachment:  Commission Membership – MPO vs. RPC 



Resolution 09-16 Attachment 

 

Commission Membership 

MPO vs RPC 

as of June 2016 

 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) Members 

2017 dues rate per capita: $0.5375 

  

County Members: Municipal Members (Villages): 

Delaware County  Brice  

Franklin County Galena 

  Harrisburg 

Municipal Members (Cities): Lithopolis  

Bexley  Lockbourne 

Canal Winchester  Marble Cliff 

Columbus  Minerva Park 

Delaware  Obetz  

Dublin  Riverlea 

Gahanna Shawnee Hills 

Grandview Heights Sunbury 

Grove City Urbancrest 

Groveport  

Hilliard Township Members: 

New Albany Blendon Township (Franklin) 

Pataskala Bloom Township (Fairfield) 

Pickerington Clinton Township (Franklin) 

Powell Etna Township (Licking) 

Reynoldsburg  Jerome Township (Union) 

Upper Arlington Liberty Township (Delaware) 

Westerville Madison Township (Franklin) 

Whitehall  Mifflin Township (Franklin) 

Worthington Perry Township (Franklin) 

 Plain Township (Franklin) 

 Prairie Township (Franklin) 

 Violet Township (Fairfield) 

  

  

Regional Planning Commission (RPC) Only Members 

2017 dues rate per capita: $0.3425 

  

County Members: Municipal Members (Villages): 

Ross County Ashville  

Union County*  Johnstown 

 New Lexington 

 Somerset 

 West Jefferson 

  

Municipal Members (Cities): Township Members: 

Marysville Granville Township (Licking) 

  

  

*For Union County, a small portion of the County is in the MPO and therefore the County pays the MPO rate for that portion. 

 



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Transportation Policy Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, June 9, 2016 

2:51 p.m. 
Transportation Policy Committee Members 

Karen Angelou 

Stacey Boumis 

Susan Brobst 

Ron Bullard 

Greg Butcher 

Ben Collins 

Mike Compton 

Karl Craven 

Michael Ebert 

Matt Greeson 

Marian Harris 

Tracy Hatmaker 

Dan Havener 

Pam Hykes O’Grady 

Jenna Jackson 

Erik Janas 

Larry Jenkins 

Anthony Jones 

Steve Kennedy 

Benjamin King 

Bill LaFayette 

Laura Lanese 

Tim Lecklider 

Kim Maggard 

Mike Maleski 

Glenn Marzluf 

Dana McDaniel 

Erin Miller 

Ellen Moss Williams 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

David Paul 

Rob Platte 

Hannah Reed 

Bryan Rhoads 

Elissa Schneider 

Ashley Senn 

Thom Slack 

Ike Stage 

Ted Staton 

Joe Stefanov 

Curtis Stitt 

Christie Ward 

Carrie Woody

Commission Members 

Franklin Christman 

Terry Emery 

Eric Phillips 

Steve Stolte 

 

Associate Members 

Nikki Scarpitti 

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Mark Crosten 

Mary Ann Frantz 

Joe Garrity 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Eileen Leuby 

William Murdock 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Bevan Schneck 

Thea Walsh 

 

 

Guests 

Harrison Allen, Summer Intern (Marble Cliff) 

Sarah Davis, Summer Intern (Grandview Heights) 

Vishwa Jena, Summer Intern (Violet Township) 

David Kilroy, Summer Intern (Perry County) 

Emily Long, Summer Intern (MORPC) 

Jack Marchbanks, ODOT District 6 

Mike Schadek, City of Columbus 

Brianna Shepherd, Summer Intern (Somerset) 

Tablet Tesfaye, Summer Intern (MORPC) 

Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill + Ritter 

Mary Turner, Summer Intern (Worthington) 

 

Chair Matt Greeson called the Transportation Policy Committee Meeting to order at 2:51 p.m. 

 

Metropolitan Planning Organization Report  

 Transportation Systems & Funding – Thea Walsh, Director 

ODOT is now accepting TRAC applications for major new projects over $12 million. Applications are 

due June 30. Please let Thea Walsh know of any projects that your community is submitting. The 

Competitive Advantage Process will help with this in the next round.  



Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 

June 9, 2016 

Page 2 

 
 

Thea Walsh invited members to attend the July 6 Commuter Challenge Celebration. Five hundred 

people have already registered for Central Ohio’s First Commuter Challenge. The results so far include 

2,089 alternative transportation trips, reduction of 20,132 vehicle miles traveled, and an estimated 

reduction of 21, 054 greenhouse gas emissions. The Celebration is at the Columbus Commons, 11:30 

a.m. to 1:00 p.m. The purpose of the June 1-30 Challenge is to increase awareness and use of 

sustainable modes of transportation and to reduce congestion and improve air quality.  

 

 Energy & Air Quality – Christina O’Keeffe, Director 

Christina O’Keeffe shared the June 2, 2016 MORPC Comment Letter supporting Ohio EPA’s 

redesignation request to attainment under the 2008 eight-hour standard. It is anticipated that Central 

Ohio will most likely be in nonattainment under the 2015 standard. The letter was recommended by 

the Energy & Air Quality Working Group and vetted by the Sustainability Advisory Committee.  

 

Consent Agenda 

Kim Maggard made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, second by Rob Platte; motion passed. 

 

The Transportation Policy Committee Meeting adjourned at 3:00 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 

Karen Angelou, Secretary 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/06092016OEPACommentLetter.pdf

